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Camp Randall is an area of approximately—50 acres on the University of Wis—A

vz

consin campus, It retains almost all of its original boundaries; modifi
tions of these have been limited largely to those required by street widis
ing and improvements., It is a relatively flat plot of land of which ab
the southern two-thirds is devoted to athletic uses and the northern thi
to academic buildings of the College of Engineering.

A small portion of the original camp has been retained along the eastern
side as a memorjal park., At what was originally the east entrance to the
camp is a granite memorial arch approximately 30 feet high and 30 feet
wide. On the left front side of the arch is a statue of a soldier as he
would have appeared as a recruit in 1861-65, and on the right is a statue
of a Wisconsin Civil War veteran as he would have appeared at the dedica-
tion of the arch in 1912--in his upper sixties to middle or upper seventies,

Within the archway, which leads into the memorial park, a bronze tablet on

the left lists all of the military units trained at Camp "Randall and their

dates of mustering-in and mustering-out., A similarly placed plaque on the

right contains the commemorative inscription., At the top of a knoll in the
park is a stone marker which is inscribed, "23 Wis. Inf, 1861-1865." Also

at this site is a Civil War cannon with a memorial plaque to the dead of

the 1l4th Wisconsin Volunteer Infantry.l

Two major athletic buildings on the camp are memorials to the military post.
Along the western side is Camp Randall Stadium, and east of the stadium,
between it and the Camp Randall Memorial Park, is the Camp Randall Memorial
Building, dedicated in 1956 "To the men of Wisconsin who fought to preserve
the Union, 1861=1865...."2 On the grounds to the south of the stadium is
the Field House, the only major athletic building on Camp Randall not named
or dedicated as a memorial,

Originally Camp Randall was the exposition grounds of the State Agrieultural
Society. Conversion to a miligg;y_gg_p began immediately after the outbrealy
of the Civil War, with the exhibition halls converted to a barracks and
hospitals and the sheds into shelters for cavalry animals. Numerous new
buildings were constructed as quickly as needed and the area was soon a

full-blown military camp (see engraving appended).
DESCRIPTION OF BOUNDARIES OF HISTORIC SITE: (see map appended)

(Memorial Park portion of Camp Randall only, as requested by National Park
Service): Bounded on the north by a sidewalk, on the south by MonroeStreet,
on the east by North Randall Avenue, and on the west by a sidewalk adjacent
to the west side of the Camp Randall Memorial Building.

1, Fred, Edwin Broun, ed,, A Univergity Remembers, University of Wisconsin,
1969, 99.
2., Ibid., 100.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Camp Randall is the single most important site in Wisconsin relating to the |
state's participation in the Civil War. It was Wisconsin's largest and
most active staging point throughout the war. Twenty-five of the state's
fffty-three infantry regiments and,; altogether, more than 70,000 of the
91,379 men Wisconsin furnished to the Union Army were trained within the
bounds of this camp., It was truly the center of Wisconsin's Civil War
activity.l

Camp Randall was named for Governor Alexander W. Randall, who expeditiously
mobilized Wisconsin men to service as soon as the Civil War broke out. The
large exposition ground under lease to the State Agricultural Society was
rapidly converted to a military camp, and by May 1, 1861, troops of the 2nd
Wisconsin Infantry were garrisoned here. Infantry regiments were organized,
trained and sent to the battlefields from here, and recruits for replace-
ment in battle units were drilled and trained, taught the use of their wea~-
pons and a little about cooking, all within about two or three weéeks' time,
and then sent to bring fighting units in the field back to organizational
strength, At the war's end, regiments which were organized here returned
to be mustered out,2

After the war the camp reverted to use as a fair ground, but the State
Agricultural Society decided to move the state fair to Milwaukee. Dane
County then used the site for county fairs for a time but also decided on
another location,

Because of the strenuous objection of the Civil War veterans to having
their old tg@ning camp parceled into plats for sale, the state purchased thq
land in 1893 and turned it over to the University of Wisconsin for use as
an athletic field, To this day the football field and stadium as well as
the rest of the athletic area on the site are known as Camp Randall,

It is believed that Caﬁp Randall, as the site most significantly associated
with Wisconsin's participation in the Civil War, is worthy of inclusion in
the National Register. .

1, Thwaites, Reuben G., "History of Camp Randall,"
2. 1Ibid.
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